A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Tommy Ashley asks this Court to accept reviev.· of the Court of 

Appeals decision terminating revie,,· designated in part B of this 

petition. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Pursuant to RAP 13.4(b), petitioner seeks review ofthe 

unpublished Court of Appeals decision in State v. Tommy Austin 

Ashley, No. 31659-9-III (October 16, 20 14). A copy of the decision is 

in the Appendix at pages 1 to 7. 

C. ISS1JES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

I. Due process requires the State prove every essential element 

of the charged otTense beyond a reasonable doubt. Mr. Ashley was 

charged with failing to reregister following his release from county jail 

for failing to report to his Community Conections Officer (CCO). 

RCW 9A.44.130, the sex offender registration statute. is silent on 

whether a defendant must reregister after being released from jail for a 

violation of the tenns of his community custody. Is a significant 

question of law under the United States and Washington Constitutions 

presented. thus entitling Mr. Ashley to reversal ofhis conviction for 

failing to register as a sex offender where the State failed to prove he 



I ., 

had a duty to reregister. and where his address remained the same after 

his release from jail? 

2. Where a statute is ambiguous, the appellate courts must 

interpret the statute in favor the defendant. Does application of the rule 

of lenity to the ambiguous statute here require reversal of Mr. Ashley's 

conviction where the State failed to prove he had a duty to reregister 

after being released from jail. where his address upon being released 

was the same as when the entered? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Tommy Ashley \vas convicted on June 13,2007, ofthird degree 

assault with a sexual motivation. CP 63. He was released from prison 

on May 2011. CP 73 (Finding of Fact 10). As a result ofhis conviction, 

Mr. Ashley \vas required to register as a sex offender for a 1 0-year 

period. CP 75 (Finding ofFact 36). Mr. Ashley timely complied with 

the registration requirement ofRCW 9A.44.130(3)(a)(i) after being 

released from prison. CP 73 (Finding ofFact 15). Mr. Ashley registered 

his address with the Yakima County Sheri tT s Office as: 2802 Beaudry 

Road. 56A. Yakima. \Vashington 98901. RP 109-11. 

On December 20.2012. Mr. Ashley was arrested on a 

Department of Corrections (DOC) warrant for failing to report to his 



,; . 

CCO. RP 67-69. From December 4 . .201.2, through December 19.2012. 

Mr. Ashley was housed in the Kittitas County Jail in Ellensburg 

pursuant to the arrest wan·ant. RP 56. 67-69. 

CaJTiAnn Ross, the records supervisor for the Yakima Sheriffs 

Office. testified that the policy of the department is that for those 

incarcerated for not more than 30 days, who have previously registered 

as a sex offender in Yakima County, and where the new incarceration is 

not for a sex offense. the defendant would be allmved to call the 

department -there was no requirement of reregistration if they had not 

changed their residence. RP 136-38. 

If they're not changing their address and not updating 
any information. we will encourage them to call and 
check with us to make sure that all oftheir information is 
updated. Because they haven't been found guilty of 
Failure to Register, there's been no indication that 
they're not currently still registered at the address that 
they're -- ... registered at. 

If they're in custody for more than 30 days. then we will 
tell them that they need to come in and register within 
our office. If they are not in custody for more than 30 
days. then we will tell them that they should call in and 
make sure that everything is current and valid. 

RP 138-39. 

Mr. Ashley was subsequently charged with Failure to Register 

as a Sex Offender for failing to reregister with the Yakima County 

.., 

.) 
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Sheriffs Office within 3 days after being rei. eased from the Kittitas 

County Jail on December 19. 2012. CP 7-8. Mr. Ashley subsequently 

waived his right to a jury trial and the matter was tried to the bench. 

CP 6; RP 8-9. At the close of evidence. Mr. Ashley moved for acquittal 

arguing. among other things. that RCW 9A.44.130 required registration 

only upon release from incarceration for the original sex offense and 

did not require registration upon release from custody on any other 

matter. RP 154-63. The trial court ruled that the Supreme Court's 

decision in Watson required reregistration under RCW 9A.44.130 and 

denied Mr. Ashley's motion for acquittal. CP 72-80: RP 178-89. 

At the conclusion of the bench trial, Mr. Ashley wac; found 

guilty as charged. CP 72-80. 

On appeaL Mr. Ashley submitted he had no obligation to 

reregister after being released from custody for a violation of his 

community custody. The Court of Appeals disagreed, ruling that this 

Court's decision in State v. Watson, 160 Wn.2d 1, 154 P.3d 909 (2007), 

required Mr. Ashley to reregister. thus affirming his conviction. 

Decision at 3-5. The Court alternatively ruled that the statute was 

unambiguous. thus Mr. Ashley had a duty to reregister under the plain 

language ofthe statute. Decision at 5-6. 

4 



E. ARGUMENT ON WHY REVIE\V SHOULD BE GRANTED 

1. THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT REVIEW TO 
DETERMINE WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT 
WAS CORRECT IN FINDING WATSON 
CONTROLS 

The State is required to prove each element ofthe crime charged 

beyond a reasonable doubt. U.S. Const. amend XIV: Apprendi v. Ne-..v 

Jersey, 530 U.S. 466.471, 120 S.Ct. 2348. 147 L.Ed.2d 435 (2000); In 

re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 364, 90 S.Ct. 1068, 25 L.Ed.2d 368 (1970). 

The standard the reviewing court uses in analyzing a claim of 

insufficiency of the evidence is "l w]hether, after viewing the evidence 

in the light most favorable to the prosecution, any rational trier of fact 

could have found the essential elements ofthe crime beyond a 

reasonable doubt.'' Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 307, 319,99 S.Ct. 

2781,61 L.Ed.2d 560 (1979). A challenge to the sufficiency of 

evidence admits the truth of the State's evidence and all reasonable 

inferences that can be drawn therefrom. State v. Salinas, 119 Wn.2d 

192. 20L 829 P.2d I 068 ( 1992). 

Here, the State was required to prove Mr. Ashley had a duty to 

reregister after his release from the Kittitas County Jail and that he 

failed to comply. The trial court found that this Court's decision in 

Watson required Mr. Ashley to reregister upon his release from 

5 
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custody, a decision affim1cd by the Court of Appeals. Mr. Ashley 

contends Watson did not resolve the issue raised in this case. thus 

Watson does not control. 

The issue of ambiguity in RCW 9A.44.130 has never addressed 

by this Court. In Watson. the issue presented and decided by this Court 

was whether RCW 9A.44.130 was unconstitutionally vague. 160 

Wn.2d 6-9. The Court ruled that the sex offender registration statute 

was not unconstitutionally vague. Id. at 11-1~. In a footnote, the Court 

specifically noted: 

Because there is no separate ambiguity challenge before 
us in this case. we decline the dissent's invitation to 
consider whether the rule of lenity should be used. The 
rule of lenity is a tool of statutory construction and not 
the proper remedy for a voidfor vagueness challenge. 

Id. at 12 fn.4 (emphasis added). As a consequence. Watson dealt only 

with a void for vagueness challenge. not an ambiguity/statutory 

construction argument as raised here by Mr. Ashley. Thus. Watson did 

not control the issue in this case and the Court of Appeals and the trial 

court were wrong for so deciding. 

Thus. this Court should accept review to determine whether 

Watson controls. find the statute ambiguous and apply the rule of 

lenity. As a result. this Court must reverse Mr. Ashley·s conviction. 

6 



" CONTRARY TO THE COURT OF APPEALS' 
CONCLUSION, RCW 9A.44.130 IS 
AMBIGUOUS AND APPLICATION OF THE 
RULE OF LENITY REQUIRES REVERSAL OF 
MR. ASHLEY'S CONVICTION 

a. Alternatively. RCW 9A.44.130 (3)(a)(i) is ambiguous 

re2.arding whether Mr. Ashlev was required to rereQ.ister. Where a 

statute is susceptible to more than one reasonable interpretation. it is 

ambiguous and this Court "may resort to statutory constmction. 

legislative history, and relevant case law for assistance in discerning 

legislative intent.'' Christensen v. Ellsworth. 162 Wn.2d 365.373. 173 

P.3d 228 (2007): Cerrillo v. Esparza. 158 Wn.2d 194, 201, 142 P.3d 

155 (2006) r·a statute is not ambiguous merely because different 

interpretations are conceivable:'). Statutory construction is a question 

of la\v reviewed de novo. Lake v. Woodcreek Homeowners Association, 

169 \Vn.2d 516, 526.243 P.3d 1283 (2010): State v. Chavez, 163 

Wn.2d 262.267, 180 P.3d 1250 (2008). 

T1 is a well-established canon of statutory construction that 

courts should avoid interpretations of a statute that render certain 

provisions superfluous. See Whatcom County v. City of Bellingham. 

128 Wn.2d 537. 546. 909 P.2d 1303 (1996) ("Statutes must be 

interpreted and construed so that all the language used is given effect. 

7 



w1th no portion rendered meaningless or superfluous."). In addition. 

when interpreting a statute, the court must avoid unlikely, absurd. or 

strained results. In re Detention o_{Coppin. 157 Wn.App. 537.552,238 

p .3d 1192 (20 1 0). 

RCW 9A.44.130 (3)(a)(i), is silent on whether a defendant must 

reregister every time he is incarcerated and released. even though he 

has not changed his residence address. which is also the address at 

which he originally registered. In the present case. the parties have each 

proffered a reasonable interpretation of the statute. Therefore. the 

statute is ambiguous. 

b. Application of the rule of lenitv to RCW 9A.44.130 

(3)(a)(i) requires reversal ofMr. Ashlev's conviction. lfthe statute 

remains ambiguous after both attempting to determine the plain 

meaning and after resorting to tools of statutory construction, this Court 

must then employ the rule oflenity. In re Personal Restraint ofSiet::::, 

124 Wn.2d 645,652,880 P.2d 34 (1994). The rule oflenity requires 

the Court to construe a statute strictly against the State and in favor of 

the defendant "[w]here two possible constructions are permissible." 

State v. Brown, 139 Wn.2d 757, 769.991 P.2d 615 (2000), quoting 

State v. Gore, 101 Wn.2d 481.485-86.681 P.2d 227 (1984). S'ee also 

8 



Jacobs, 154 Wn.2d at 600-01 ("1 C a statute is ambiguous, the rule of 

lenity requires us to interpret the statute in favor of the defendant 

absent legislative intent to the contrary.''). Thus, under the rule of 

lenity. this Court must interpret the ambiguity in favor of Mr. Ashley. 

Sierz. 124 Wn.2d at 652: State v. Johnson. 159 Wn.App. 766. 776. 247 

P.3d 11 (2011 ). 

Here, if the statute remains ambiguous even after applying the 

tools of statutory construction, the statute must be construed narrowly 

in Mr. Ashley's favor. Under this interpretation, the State failed to 

prove that Mr. Ashley was under an obligation to reregister where his 

residence address before entering jail. and after being released 

remained the same. 

This Court should grantreview to determine whether RC\\' 

9A.44.130 is ambiguous. and if so, whether the application of the rule 

oflenity requires reversal of Mr. Ashley's conviction. 
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F. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated. Mr. Ashley asks this Court to grant 

review and reverse and remand his sentence. 

l~espectfully submitted, 

THOMAS MjKUMMER 
tom@wasl).aPp.org 
Washingt6n Appellate Pr~ject- 91052 
Attorneys for Petitioner 

~/ 
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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
DIVISION THREE 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

Respondent, 

V, 

TOMMY AUSTIN ASHLEY, 

Appellant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

No. 31659-9-III 

UNPUBLISHED OPINION 

oi { nu"'· 

lJ;\ t-tioL ~ li 

KORSMO, J.- Tommy Ashley appeals his most recent conviction for failing to 

register as a sex offender, arguing that his return to his residence of record cannot violate 

the statute. Since the statute required that he reregister upon being released from jail, we 

affirm. 

FACTS 

In 2007, Mr. Ashley was convicted in Yakima County Superior Court of third degree 

assault with sexual motivation. That conviction triggered his obligation to register as a sex 

offender under RCW 9A.44.130. In 2009, he was twice convicted of failing to register and 

sent to prison. After release from prison in 2011, he again was under the supervision of the 

Department of Corrections for the 2007 conviction. 



,. 

No. 31 o59-9-Tll 
State v. Ashley 

:Vir. Ashlev registered his residence as 280:2 Beaudrv Road #56/\ in Yakima on . ~ . 

November 16, 2012. Twelv~ days later. Community Corrections Otlicer (CCO) Mungia 

unsuccessfully attempted to contact Mr. Ashley at that address. The two men spoke the 

following day on the telephone and Mungia advised Ashley that he had to repm1 in person 

and register. As a result of failing later to appear before CCO Mungia, an arrest wan·ant 

issued in the third degree assault case. Mr. Ashley was incarcerated on that \varrant in the 

Kittitas County Jai! from December 4 to December 19, 2012. 

Mr. Ashley did not reregister in Yakima County after his release from the Kittitas 

County Jail. Another warrant issued for his arrest and he eventually \.\'as stopped whik 

driving in the trailer park at the Beaudry Road address. lie was charged in Yakima County 

with failure to register as a sex offender. The charging document alleged the offense was 

committed between Dt:ct:mher 19 and 30. 2012. 

The matter eventually proceeded to bench trial. The State argued that Mr. Ashley 

had a duty to again register after his release from the Kittitas County Jail since he had