A. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

The Respondent is the State of Washington. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISIONS 

At issue is the unpublished court of appeals decision filed on July 

14, 2014 in Division Three of the Court of Appeals. 

C. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Does the unpublished court of appeals decision meet the 
criteria for review under RAP 13.4(b) 

D. STATEMENTOFTHECASE 

The Appellant, Tommy Austin Ashley, was convicted of third 

degree assault with sexual motivation, a sex offense, on June 13, 2007 in 

Yakima County cause number 07-1-00909-0. RP 76, CP 63. As a result 

of this conviction, he was required to register pursuant to 9A.44.130. RP 

65, 78. In 2009, he was convicted ~ice of failing to register as a sex 

offender. RP 108. He was released from prison in May, 2011. (Finding 

of Fact 1 0). After his release, he was on supervision with the Department 

of Corrections for his 2007 sex offense conviction. RP 118. 

After release from prison in 2011, he was advised of his conditions 

of supervision, including the sex offender registration requirements. RP 

65, 121. (Finding of Fact 11-12). In 2011, he complied with his 

registration requirement after being released, (Finding of Fact 15-16), but 

was very hostile when he reported, RP 111. However, Ashley told his 

community corrections officer (CCO) that he did not think that he should 

be on supervision and that he wanted to be homeless. RP 65, 111. 



His CCO, Officer Munguia, confirmed that he was living at 2802 

Beaudry Road #56 A in Yakima. RP 11 0. Ashley last registered this 

address on November 16, 2012. RP 135, 138 (Finding of Fact 40). 

Officer Mungia tried to contact Ashley on November 28, 2012 for a home 

visit but was not able to do so. (Finding ofFact 17-18). On November 

29, 2012, Officer Mungia spoke to Ashley and told him that he needed to 

register as a sex offender and report in person to him. RP 115 (Finding of 

Fact 20). Ashley did not do so and a warrant was issued. RP 115 (Finding 

of Fact 23, 24). The warrant was for failing to report to his CCO after 

being released from incarceration at the Yakima County jail. RP 69, 119. 

Ashley was incarcerated on December 4, 2012 in Kittitas County 

on the DOC warrant under cause number 07-1-00909-0. RP 56, 67, 69. 

(Finding of Fact 5). He was released from the Kittitas County jail on 

December 19, 2012. RP 56. (Finding of Fact 5). Prior to his 

incarceration, Ashley had been told to register upon release if incarcerated 

for absconding from supervision. RP 121. 

However, he did not register after being released from the Kittitas 

County jail on December 19, 2012. RP 70 (Conclusion of Law 12). He 

also did not report to his community corrections officer. RP 70. He was 

supposed to report within one day of his release to Officer Munguia. RP 

116. 
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On February 6, 2013, Ashley was pulled over by Sergeant Mark 

Lewis with the Moxee Police Department. RP 142 (Finding of Fact 49). 

Ashley was arrested in the trailer court at 2802 Beaudry Road. RP 143. 

There was no testimony presented at trial as to where Ashley was actually 

residing between December 19 and his arrest on February 6, 2013. Officer 

Mungia did not know if Ashley had changed his address. RP 110. 

On February 11, 2013, Ashley was charged with failing to register 

as a sex offender under 9A.44.132(1)(b), a class B felony. CP 3. The time 

period that he was charged with failing to register was "on, about, during, 

or between December 19, 2012 and December 30, 2012." Id. 

After waiving a jury trial, a bench trial commenced. The State 

called four witnesses and Ashley did not call any witnesses. RP 145 

(Finding ofFact 4). Ashley was found guilty on Aprilll, 2013. CP 72-

80. The trial court found that he had a duty to register after being released 

from the Kittitas jail because he was being held there on a violation 

relating back to his 2007 sex offense. (Finding of Fact 32). The Court of 

Appeals affirmed the conviction. 
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E. ARGUMENT 

In re Coats explained the standard for when review should be 

accepted by this court: 

... [T]he petitioner must persuade us that 

either the decision below conflicts with a 

decision of this court or another division of 

the Court of Appeals, that it presents a 

significant question of constitutional 

interest, or that it presents an issue of 

substantial public interest that should be 

decided by this court. RAP 13.5A(a)(l), (b); 

RAP 13.4(b). 

In re Pers. Restraint ofCoats, 173 Wn.2d 123, 132-133, 267 P.3d 324 

(2011). 

Petitioner has not argued in any fashion how the decision of the 

Court of Appeal satisfies the criteria for discretionary review pursuant to 

RAP 13.4(b). He has not pointed to any case that conflicts with the 

decision at hand. Petitioner has not explained how this case involves any 

significant question of constitutional law or issue of substantial public 

interest. In fact, the Court of Appeal decision does not involve a 

significant question of constitutional or an issue of substantial public 

interest. As such, review should be denied. 

Petitioner argues that State v. Watson, 160 Wn.2d 1, 154 P.3d 909 

(2007) does not control the issue in this case because it dealt with a void 

for vagueness challenge, rather than an ambiguity challenge. However, he 

does not indicate how the court's decision conflicts with Watson, only 
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arguing Watson does not control the issue. The court of appeal's decision 

is actually completely consistent with Watson. And Ashley has not 

identified any other case contrary to the court of appeal's decision. On 

that basis alone, review should be denied. 

In Watson, a convicted sex offender challenged his conviction for 

failing to register when he failed to re-register after being released from 

jail after serving time on a community custody violation. 160 Wn.2d at 5. 

The court of appeals affirmed the conviction and this Court affirmed the 

court of appeals. Id. at 5, 12. This Court held that the statute was clear: 

" ... the case law presumptively available to Watson explains in no 

uncertain terms that incarceration for probation violations is a result of the 

original conviction for which probation was granted." Id. at 9. The Court 

relied on 40 years of case law including State v. Eilts, 94 Wn.2d 489, 494 

n.3, 617 P.2d 993 (1980); State v. King, 130 Wn.2d 517, 522, 925 P.2d 

606 (1996); State v. Whitaker, 112 Wn.2d 341,342,771 P.2d 332 (1989), 

State v. Prado, 86 Wn. App. 573, 578, 937 P.2d 636 (1997); State v. 

Dupard, 93 Wn.2d 268,276, 609 P.2d 961 (1980); and Standlee v. Smith, 

83 Wn.2d 405,407,518 P.2d 721 (1974). 

While the challenge was vagueness in Watson, much of the 

analysis is helpful to the ambiguity question in the case at hand. The first 

step in interpreting a statute is to examine its plain language. Id. at 263. 

In doing so, "the court should assume that the legislature means exactly 

what it says." State v. McCraw, 127 Wn.2d 281,288, 898 P.2d 838 
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(1995). Plain words do not require construction. Id., see also State v. 

Smith, 117 Wn.2d 263,271, 814 P.2d 652 (1991) ("Words are given the 

meaning provided by the statute or, in the absence of specific definition, 

their ordinary meaning"). 

The statute at issue is RCW 9A.44.130(3)(a)(i): 

(3) (a) Offenders shall register with the county 
sheriff within the following deadlines: 

(i) OFFENDERS IN CUSTODY. (A) Sex 
offenders who committed a sex offense on, 
before, or after February 28, 1990, and who, on 
or after July 28, 1991, are in custody, as a result 
of that offense, of the state department of 
corrections, the state department of social and 
health services, a local division of youth services, or 
a local jail or juvenile detention facility, and (B) 
kidnapping offenders who on or after July 27, 1997, 
are in custody of the state department of 
corrections, the state department of social and 
health services, a local division of youth services, or 
a local jail or juvenile detention facility, must 
register at the time of release from custody with 
an official designated by the agency that has 
jurisdiction over the offender. The agency shall 
within three days forward the registration 
information to the county sheriff for the county of 
the offender's anticipated residence. The offender 
must also register within three business days from 
the time of release with the county sheriff for the 
county of the person's residence, or if the person is 
not a resident of Washington, the county of the 
person's school, or place of employment or 
vocation. The agency that has jurisdiction over the 
offender shall provide notice to the offender of the 
duty to register. 

RCW 9A.44.130(3)(a)(i) (emphasis added). 

At issue is whether the specific language "as a result of" is 

ambiguous or not. A statute's "[p]lain meaning 'is to be discerned from 
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the ordinary meaning of the language at issue, the context of the statute in 

which that provision is found, related provisions, and the statutory scheme 

as a whole."' Gonzalez, 168 Wn.2d 256,263,226 P.3d 131 (2010). Ifthe 

statute is unambiguous, upon reviewing its plain meaning, the inquiry is at 

an end. Id. Although a statute is ambiguous when it is susceptible to two 

or more reasonable interpretations, a statute is not ambiguous merely 

because different interpretations are conceivable. Id. 

Ashley argues that the plain language of the statute means only his 

release from prison on the underlying sex offense. However, the statute 

does not narrowly define release as only when one is being held on the 

underlying sex offense, and not on subsequent community custody 

violations related to that offense. The statute is worded more broadly than 

that. It does not specify what exactly the person is in custody for. It only 

specifies that it is a result of the sex offense. 

There is no definition in the statute for the phrase "as a result of." 

When a statutory term is undefined, the courts give that word its ordinary 

meaning, and may look to a dictionary for such meaning. Gonzalez, 168 

Wn.2d at 263; see also State v. Smith, 117 Wn.2d 263,271,814 P.2d 652 

(1991) ('"Words are given the meaning provided by the statute or, in the 

absence of specific definition, their ordinary meaning."' The definition of 

the word "result" is "to proceed or arise as a consequence, effect, or 

conclusion." Merriam Webster's Collegiate Dictionary 999 (lOth ed. 
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1994 ). As applied here, Ashley's incarceration on the community custody 

violations was a consequence or result of the 2007 sex offense. 

Ashley essentially wants the court to read something into the 

statute that is not there-he wants the court to narrowly limit the type of 

custody that the registration statute applies to. But this is not a reasonable 

interpretation of the statute. As explained in State v. Tili, the proffered 

alternative interpretation must be reasonable. See 139 Wn.2d 107, 115, 

985 P.2d 365 (1999). A reviewing court "[is] not obliged to discern an 

ambiguity by imagining a variety of alternative interpretations. W. 

Telepage, Inc. v. City of Tacoma Dep't of Fin., 140 Wn.2d 599, 608, 998 

P .2d 8 84 (2000). Furthermore, the ability to argue two interpretations of a 

statute does not necessarily render the statute ambiguous. State v. Taplin, 

55 Wn. App. 668,670,779 P.2d 1151 (1989). 

Had the legislature wanted to distinguish between different types 

of custody in terms of registration requirements, it very well could have 

delineating that in certain terms. The statute does not use the phrase, "as a 

result of the original conviction" or refer to an "initial sentence." As such, 

the legislature's use of the broad phrase "as a result of' does not create 

ambiguity. It is clear from the plain language of the statute that convicted 

sex offenders must register upon release from any type of custody that is 

"a result of' the sex offense. As indicated in Watson, this triggers the 

applicability of the registration requirement. See 160 Wn.2d 1, 5, 154 

P.3d 909 (2007). 
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The registration requirement extends to incarceration for probation 

violations because they relate back to the original conviction for which 

probation was granted. Watson, 160 Wn.2d. at 8-9. The incarceration is 

not merely the result of the violation, but is "deemed punishment for the 

original crime." Id. (citing State v. Dupard, 93 Wn.2d 268, 276, 609 P.2d 

961 (1980) ("Parole revocation ... is a 'continuing consequence' ofthe 

original conviction."); Standlee v. Smith, 83 Wn.2d 405,407,518 P.2d 

721 (1974) ("Parole is revoked ... as part ofthe continuing consequences 

of the crime for which parole was granted."). Thus, case law supports the 

interpretation that jail time for probation violations is a result of the 

original conviction for which probation was granted. Id. at 9. This means 

that the release from custody for violations imposed on a sex offense 

conviction triggers the requirement to register. See id. Petitioner has cited 

no case to the contrary. 

In sum, the phrase "as a result of' is not ambiguous. Without a 

threshold showing of ambiguity, the court derives the statute's meaning 

from the words of the statute itself, and does not engage in statutory 

construction or consider the rule oflenity. Geschwind v. Flanagan, 121 

Wn.2d 833,840-41,854 P.2d 1061 (1993). 

Alternatively, assuming arguendo that the plain language of the 

statute is ambiguous, the rule of lenity does not apply because legislative 

intent is completely contrary to Ashley's interpretation of the statute. 
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When the legislature enacted RCW 9A.44.130, it made the following 

findings: 

The legislature finds that sex offenders often pose a 
high risk ofreoffense, and that law enforcement's 
efforts to protect their communities, conduct 
investigations, and quickly apprehend offenders 
who commit sex offenses, are impaired by the lack 
of information available to law enforcement 
agencies about convicted sex offenders who live 
within the law enforcement agency's jurisdiction. 
Therefore, this state's policy is to assist local law 
enforcement agencies' efforts to protect their 
communities by regulating sex offenders by 
requiring sex offenders to register with local law 
enforcement agencies as provided in section 402 of 
this act. 

LAws OF 1990, ch. 3, § 401. From this declaration, the "purpose behind 

sex offender registration is to assist law enforcement agencies' protection 

efforts." Watson, 160 Wn.2d at 9. It does so by keeping law enforcement 

informed of the whereabouts of sex offenders who may reoffend. I d. at 

10. 

As explained in Watson: 

This purpose is served by requiring sex offenders to 
register their address when they are first released 
and requiring reregistration when they move. 
However, it is also served by requiring 
reregistration when they are released from jail after 
violating their probation on the sex offense. 
Registration at such a time informs law enforcement 
that a potentially dangerous offender is returning to 
a residence in their area, which enables law 
enforcement to take any precautions necessary to 
protect their community. This information does 
not lose its usefulness to law enforcement simply 
because, as in this case, the offender can still be 
found at the same address registered prior to 
incarceration. It still informs law enforcement of a 
change in the sex offender's whereabouts-from 
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jail or prison to the previously registered address
and notifies law enforcement of the presence of a 
potential danger. 

160 Wn.2d at 11. The Watson court noted that 'just as local law 

enforcement needs to know when a sex offender moves to its community, 

it needs to know when a sex offender returns to the community." Id. The 

purpose behind the registration statute is served when law enforcement is 

alerted that someone is back in the community. Consequently, the 

offender remains obligated to reregister upon return to his residence. Id. 

Ashley argues that registration is meaningless when an offender 

does not change his address after being released. In this case, he argues 

that his address remained unchanged. However, this fact is not in the 

record. Because Ashley did not testify or all call any witnesses, the record 

is void as to where he was residing upon release. The uncontested 

evidence at trial was that Officer Munguia was not able to reach Ashley at 

his address, (Finding of Fact 17 -18), and that Ashley did not report as 

directed, RP 70. Officer Munguia further testified that he did not know if 

Ashley's address had changed after December 19. RP 110. Registration 

would certainly not be meaningless in this situation. Furthermore, there is 

no exception to the statute that exempts one from registering when his or 

her address remains the same after incarceration. 

The rule of lenity only requires an interpretation of an ambiguous 

statute in the defendant's favor absent legislative intent to the contrary. 

State v. Mandanas, 168 Wn.2d 84, 87-88, 228 P.3d I3 (20IO). In this 
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case, there is legislative intent to the contrary. The legislative history 

supports the interpretation that Ashley was required to register upon his 

release from jail. As such, the rule of lenity does not apply. 

F. CONCLUSION 

Petitioner has not pointed to any case that conflicts with the 

decision at hand. Petitioner has not explained how this case involves any 

significant question of constitutional law or issue of substantial public 

interest. The decision at hand does not meet any of the criteria in RAP 

13.4(b). The Court of Appeals decision correctly affirmed the trial court's 

decision. As such, the petition for review should be denied.